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  [10.01 am] 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Yes, thank you, just a couple of matters before we start.  

Firstly, Dr Alex Sutherland who is going to help us with conferencing 

later on is sitting in the witness box today but he is not a witness. 5 

 

 Just like to raise with the Crown and the Council, a matter that we 

could address when we come back on Strategic Directions.  You 

possibly – have you got the Order in Council in front of you? 

 10 

MR RADICH:   (INDISTINCT 2.26). 

 

SIR HANSEN:   There is a provision in 6.2 – no sorry, I have got the wrong 

one, yes sorry, 1B, the identification of the parts of the existing district 

plans that have been replaced which is then regurgitated in the same 15 

form in 13.3 which is a hearing and decisions, and then it appears again 

in the schedule, and in the schedule it appears to be something we are 

required to do after decision.   

 

 We are just wanting Council to look at quite where 13.3 fits in the 20 

scheme of things and what, if anything, we are expected to do. 

 

MR RADICH:   I see. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   It just says identify, but are we to publish it, I mean, the 25 

Council has the obligation to notify and we just assume that that has 

been done, of course. 

 

 The other matter we were going to raise given the timeliness of the 

process and what is going on this week, that rather hearing the legal 30 

submissions on 5 January, we will delay it until the Wednesday of that 

week, the 7th, if that suited parties best.  We are also minded to say that 

while we would expect the Council and the Crown to be present to 

speak to their submissions, there did not seem to be matters of such 

moment for others that we were minded to say that they could be free 35 

to file written submissions. 

 

MR RADICH:   Yes, sir that is perfectly acceptable to the Crown on both 

counts. 

 40 

SIR HANSEN:   Mr Winchester? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am in the same position, sir, quite content with that. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   All right, thank you, we are grateful.  45 
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MR RADICH:   How would you like us to come back to you on your point- - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well, I said we will address it when we come back.  I do not 

think it impacts on Strategic Directions particularly. 

 5 

MR RADICH:   No, but if the outcome - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   You could include it as a separate short submission when you 

come back on the 7th. 

 10 

MR RADICH:   Yes, thank you, we will try and do that on a joint basis too, sir, 

thank you. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you.  We will come to natural hazards, I have already 

introduced Dr Sutherland, we have got a note of parties represented 15 

here today, so the first item is the scope of the hearing and splitting of 

parties for the pre hearing which is something we have already – 

splitting the parties is something we have already done.  We have here 

today, I think, all of the parties intending to call expert evidence and we 

will deal with – if I can put it this way and I do not mean it in the 20 

pejorative sense, the lay submitters at a later hearing towards the end of 

January, because we wanted to be able to put in place and start the 

conferencing process.  So scope of hearing.  I will hand over to Judge 

Hassan. 

 25 

  [10.05 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you.  Just in terms – are there any issues that 

parties want to raise in regard to item 2 before we go through the 

balance of the – in terms of the scope, any questions, or issues or 30 

uncertainties around the scope of the hearing of natural hazards? 

 

 Okay, I take that silence as contented consent. 

 

 In terms of procedural matters, does anyone wish to make any 35 

applications for any procedural directions.  I have one question about 

this but I will leave that in case there are others, any other applications 

anyone wants to make in regard to preparations for the natural hazards 

hearing? 

 40 

MR SMYTH:   (INDISTINCT 1.12)  

 

SIR HANSEN:   If you just stand please.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Say your name again for the record. 45 
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MR SMYTH   Pearse Smyth, Cameron and Company.  I represent seven 

submitters and a second group of two submitters, sir. 

 

 Just in relation to service of memoranda, there is a large group of 

submitters in relation to the Natural Hazards chapter, and I am 5 

wondering if perhaps it could be segmented into flooding and into the 

different areas so therefore the serving of a memorandum in relation to 

a particular area, you only have to serve those submitters, and if the 

secretary could - - -  

 10 

SIR HANSEN:   Well we would certainly be splitting the hearing in that 

matter, I am not sure about splitting memoranda because we are 

probably not at the stage yet where we have total confidence in the 

identification of submitters and their interests from the database to be 

(INDISTINCT 2.07). 15 

 

MR SMYH:   Yes, sir, indeed, two of my clients were just served yesterday 

were informed that this is happening and I got instructions late last 

night, but I suppose it is just quite a really, just a standard 

memorandum everybody had served and quite a number of people 20 

won’t be – it won’t be relevant in that sense. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Look we understand the point, our nervousness is, as your 

clients nearly did by the sounds of it, missed out on things. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We have got more confidence than that, err on the side of 

caution. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I may add, that there is work being done on that at the present 

time with a great deal of co-operation from the Council, so hopefully 30 

when we get past this chapter, future chapters will not suffer from the 

same problem. 

 

MR SMYTH:   That is not a great comfort, sir. 

 35 

SIR HANSEN:   I would not quite use the word comfort, I am not sure I would 

go quite that far yet, but hopefully as we move into next year, comfort 

will come along. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, and you were wanting to raise something too. 40 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Yes, I have been speaking with quite a lot learned 

people - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   If you could just say your name and then stand. 45 
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MS STUBENVOLL:   Sue Stubenvoll from Lyttelton.  We are finding when 

we talk with local people that people could naturally fall into several 

groupings, so my question is will the groupings be determined by the 

Panel or will there be an element of self-selection in the groupings 

where people wish to attend one or more groupings, in particular, 5 

reference to our areas there is the difference between land stability and 

rock fall, rock roll, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   In terms of answering your question, the hearing will run 

as a single hearing with topics within it and it will be for parties – they 10 

will be entitled to go to the hearing entirely, but to attend those matters 

where their submission raises issues, that is when we expect 

attendance, and unless there is some communication saying you do not 

wish to attend that part of the hearing, we can deal with it on that basis. 

 15 

 And it will really be up to individuals as you said, to select beyond that, 

which parts of the hearing are of interest to them.  We have got some 

submitters here that raise matters across all natural hazard categories 

and others are quite specific, or as Mr Smyth, indicated, some have 

particular issues only in certain localities.  Does that help to answer 20 

your question? 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   It does, thank you. 

 

  [10.10 am] 25 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I think we would add this that although we will set out a 

hearing schedule with the different topics if individual submitters as a 

matter of efficiency are going to submit on say two topics but want it 

dealt with just with one appearance so you do not have to come back 30 

here twice, as nice as our hearing room is, the secretariat will certainly 

work with you to accommodate that. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   That is more than I expected, thank you. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are there any other procedural matters or questions?  Mr 

Cowie, Friend of the Submitter at the back of the room. 

 

MR COWIE:   Yes thank you, sir.  Just to note that I am getting a lot of 

questions from people who are unclear about specific relief.  And I 40 

have said to a lot of them having looked at their submissions, 

particularly in relation to rockfall, that I believe they have asked for 

specific relief. 

 

45 
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 The other question is that of expert witnesses and I suspect there will 

be a number of submitters who will come along with expert witnesses 

about their specific relief who will not necessarily understand the 

instruction about what is meant by “expert witnesses”.   

 5 

 So just to note those points and I think it would be expeditious if we 

accept some of those experts about those very narrow matters without 

providing any additional information. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   So are you suggesting these will be people with qualities of an 10 

expert, but who do not understand the Code? 

 

MR COWIE:   Yes, sir, I do and some of them I think have contracted 

geotechnical engineers but would not understand that they are 

necessarily experts.   15 

 

SIR HANSEN:   But presumably the geotechnical engineers would? 

 

MR COWIE:  They are not necessarily in the loop with these things I think, sir.  

The addresses for service are not the due (ph 1.55) technical engineers. 20 

 

SIR HANSEN:   All right.  Well we will endeavour to make that particular 

point plain in any communications from the Panel. 

 

MR COWIE:   Thank you, sir. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So Mr Cowie, just in terms of the question of specified 

relief I think the Panel’s approach to that would be targeting where we 

think we needed it so that lay submitters for instance, I have read 

several of these in preparation for today’s prehearing meeting are 30 

specific enough, for instance we do not want the rockfall restrictions 

applying to our property or we think our property has been incorrectly 

put in to this category of flood protection when it should not be.  That 

sort of thing is quite specific. 

 35 

MR COWIE:   Yes, that is very correct, sir.  A lot of them are just asking for 

minor amendments to the planning maps. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  So where the Panel thinks there is a need for 

instance particularly from represented parties for more specification of 40 

relief the Panel will direct that.  Are there any other matters of a 

procedural nature?  Before we deal with the other agenda items.  

 

 Mr Winchester, just one matter and if we can possibly deal with this 

later but I just thought I would raise it now.  I see that several 45 

submitters raise the question of modelling.   
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MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And wish to take issue with the Council’s modelling.   

And that would appear to be an issue that would be relevant to expert 5 

conferencing.  So in terms of interrogating modelling there is different 

modelling applying to flood levels in the different catchments and so 

forth.  Am I right to understand that for a start?  Just at the basic level 

there is certain modelling in that area? 

 10 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And that informs choices around floor levels and that sort 

of thing? 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes it does. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And then there is modelling in regard to slope and 

stability, is that right? 

 20 

MR WINCHESTER:   Correct, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And that modelling presumably is referenced in the 

section 32 background reports is it or? 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   I cannot answer that with any certainty, sir, but I would 

expect so. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Have you got any comments now about access to 

that model should other experts wish to have access to the model to, for 30 

instance, interrogate it for the purpose of preparing evidence? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well I think, sir, the usual rules would apply to the 

extent there may be some intellectual property.  I think the model 

would be available to be interrogated and run but not handed over 35 

wholesale as it were.  I can take some instructions on that but it is 

entirely proper that people who wish to understand the (INDISTINCT 

4.42) of methodology and perhaps even do a dummy run of their own 

numbers should be able to do that, either under supervision, or if there 

is no issue in terms of the proprietary nature of the modelling to have 40 

access to run themselves.  
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  [10.15 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes and certainly from a procedural point of view, 

including for conferencing, it is far preferable for these things to be 

worked through so that those things do not end up being matters of 5 

argument or contention in terms of – or at least too late in the process 

that they can be dealt with early.  So I am just wondering whether in 

fact the Council could consider this, make an application for directions 

so that the Panel can get that sorted out relatively quickly and planned 

ahead of expert conferencing in February. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is sensible sir.  I will take instructions on that and 

expect that we will advise the Panel of the position and/or make an 

application accordingly perhaps this week. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thanks very much, Mr Winchester. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so hearings procedures.  Time limits for cross-20 

examination.  The Panel’s view was as compared with Strategic 

Directions there is a far greater emphasis in this particular hearing on 

expert evidence at that technical level and therefore the Panel should 

allow greater licence in time terms for cross-examination.   

 25 

 I wonder if I could take views, particularly from those who are going to 

be reliant on a number of expert witness statements for their case?  As 

to sensible time limits and those set by direction.  I think we ran to an 

approximate 15 minutes a witness for the last hearing.  Would double 

that be about a good starting point? 30 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That seems about right, sir, and obviously depending 

upon the level of contention with an individual witness that could be 

extended with the leave of the Panel and hopefully that should become 

more apparent through the caucusing process and once the evidence is 35 

filed, and possibly we could even revisit that when we got closer to the 

hearing if the parties identified that they wished to take longer they 

could of course - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well we had swings and roundabouts in Strategic Direction.  40 

Some drifted over the 15 minutes, some were under.  There was 

withdrawal of applications.  So I thought it worked quite well.  If we 

say 30 minutes, subject to the comments that there is leave for longer 

for specific witnesses that would have to be in the cross-examination 

application for leave to cross-examination.  Is there anybody here who 45 

thinks 30 minutes is not sufficient as part of our procedural order? 
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MR SMYTH:   It is very hard to say until we see the briefs of evidence really. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   We understand that.  Yes?  Could you identify – just wait 

until you get the microphone.  If you just identify who you are, please. 5 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   My name is Nicole Lauenstein.  I am here on behalf of 

one of our clients and I just want to know whether we can take the 

witness evidence as pre-read because that will make a difference to our 

time. 10 

 

SIR HANSEN:   That is already in our procedural – on the website.  If you 

have read that you will have noticed that we are reading everything. 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Sure.  And that is definitely going to be always the case? 15 

 

SIR HANSEN:   That is always the case. 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Good, thank you for that. 

 20 

SIR HANSEN:   Unless we specify otherwise for a particular chapter but I 

cannot envisage the time limits on us that that is ever going to happen. 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Okay, thank you. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You might not have been to the Strategic Directions 

hearing but the typical approach will be the expert will come and be 

sworn in and then have opportunity to speak, hopefully efficiently and 

precisely to the theory of their evidence, just as an introduction to it and 

then questions and cross-examination. 30 

 

SIR HANSEN:   So there was about a 10-minute by and large highlights 

package if I can put it that way before cross-examination and questions 

from the Panel.  But you can rest assured everything will be pre-read.  

Anybody else that wishes to comment or raise anything?  So we say 35 

30 minutes then? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, 30 minutes.  And remember applications for cross-

examination need to be filed.  Cross-examination is not a right in this 

inquiry, and obviously important to the question whether the cross-40 

examination is of assistance to the Panel is important as well as the 

interests of your client.  So in terms of other matters, I am not sure 

what is under (B).  Any other matters we will deal with that later.   

 

45 
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 Do any parties intend to share witnesses?  I do note that there are 

several clusters of common interest.  I see that particularly amongst the 

retail and commercial submitters.  And some of the insurance 

submissions.  So particularly in that area is there anyone representing 

those interests here or in other areas where they intend to share expert 5 

evidence? 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Jamie Robinson for AIG, and it is likely at this stage that 10 

we will be – we are still in discussions at the moment but hoping to 

share possibly planning witnesses and potentially a geotechnical 

flooding witness as well, but it is still in discussions at this stage, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Yes? 15 

 

MR PEDLEY:   Sir, David Pedley, for Southern Response Earthquake Services 

Limited, so just to second Jamie’s point that we are in early discussions 

about collaborating with witnesses wherever we can and it is likely to 

involve the witnesses that she has mentioned and perhaps beyond that.  20 

There will be probably separate witnesses as well in terms of 

representatives from the respective insurance companies, but wherever 

there is the potential for collaboration we will be looking to achieve 

that. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you very much.  And the Panel appreciates 

those endeavours by parties, it certainly does help efficiency to try to 

get that collaboration where it can be done.  Anything else? 

 

MR RADICH:   Just one more, your Honour, you will be pleased to know 30 

perhaps in terms of the position of the Crown that, having spoken at 

some length with my learned friends for the Council, we can say that 

there will not be any duplication of any sort, as you would hope, 

between Crown and Council witnesses in terms of the underlying 

science, if you like, for any of the natural hazards.   35 

 

 And so we have worked to put in place between us a form of system 

where we can achieve that and so, for example, on the Council’s list, 

and this may come up better under the next topic, but the Council’s list 

has Chris Massey from GNS.  So certainly the Council has been using 40 

GNS to assist it in its work.  Equally, of course, the Crown has 

assistance from GNS so it is possible, we need to just make final 

arrangements, so that witness will be shared.   

 

45 
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 And that the Crown would not be calling evidence that overlaps with 

the underlying evidence for the Council.  Really I suppose it is a matter 

of policy and planning where there may be some slight differences, but 

that the net effect of all of that is that I can say that the Crown 

witnesses will be reduced from the list we indicated down in fact to 5 

four. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Thank you very much, Mr Radich, that is 

particularly helpful.  There were good examples of that approach I 

think in Strategic Directions.  I can think of the economist that was 10 

called for the Council and CIAL, for instance, as an example of that. 

 

MR RADICH:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Given the experts Code of Conduct obligations I think 15 

there is every possibility that that could work quite well.   

 

MR RADICH:   Yes, indeed. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Good. 20 

 

MR RADICH:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes? 

 25 

MR JOLL:   Sorry, Tim Joll from Planz Consultants, I would just like to 

indicate that we will be likely to provide combined evidence for up to 

12 clients. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Are you in a position to identify those areas, 30 

are they commercial, retail? 

 

MR JOLL:   Commercial, residential and retail. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, just on the topic of other matters, a note has been put 35 

in front of me from one of the other Panel members, that we will need 

good quality maps if we are to properly understand, in particular 

individual circumstances in regard to hazards.   

 

 Now, I wonder, perhaps it is a question to you, Mr Winchester, in terms 40 

of mapping.  Does the Council mapping system allow for, for instance, 

high resolution mapping to be done?   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, it does. 

 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   So I think in terms of the capacity that the Council has as 

a proponent of the Plan, I think the Panel would appreciate the 

assistance that it can have from the Council system for these sorts of 

things.  I am mindful, for instance, that individual submitters, for 

instance, that may have a concern about their particular property down 5 

to that level may or may not have resourcing of their own, but whether 

there would be some possibility of assisting the Panel and submitters in 

that area.  For instance, if Mr Cowie has some feedback, some requests 

of that nature, do you think it might be possible to have the Council 

system available for that sort of purpose? 10 

 

  [10.25 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I will make some investigations about that, sir, and 

it may be possible that - - - 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It could come either from the Panel or it might, for 

instance, come from the Friend of Submitter I suppose that an 

individual wants to make a case for their section or whatever and its 

relationship to this and that. 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, well I mean that is fairly and squarely before the 

Panel in terms of the relief sought.  So I can add that to my list of 

matters to come back to the Panel on and it may be possible to have 

access to the mapping database. 25 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I think we probably need it on the database so we can bring it 

up electronically but for this particular chapter I would have thought it 

may be useful to have a hard copy of each individual plan so we can 

put it on the wall behind the witnesses, for example, or somewhere like 30 

that, because particularly with lay submitters it would be easier for 

them to go to that to point out their own property and their own 

concerns.  So if you could turn to your mind to that as well, 

Mr Winchester. 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, we shall and obviously think about the 

appropriate level of resolution as well given – I am not sure exactly 

how many maps are involved but several so we just to make sure that 

they are going to be appropriately visible to all parties. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Now - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Now, somebody had not finished yet. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I beg your pardon. 45 
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MR MILLER:   Darryl Miller University of Canterbury and Orion 

New Zealand. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, Mr Miller. 

 5 

MR MILLER:   Just to confirm, sir, that we will be using one planning witness 

for both of those submitters. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you very much, Mr Miller.  Just while you are 

on your feet I wonder if this, under the topic of consolidation of cases, 10 

it might be that the Panel could ask for those that are presenting a case 

which is effectively the same case as a cluster or a consolidation of 

cases with the same experts, that the Panel might be assisted with a 

memorandum or something to that effect from those parties which 

clarifies how their relief is effectively the same. 15 

 

MR MILLER:   Yes, sir, we can certainly do that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Yes?  Perhaps if you stand up, I think it is 

better for everyone to be able to hear you. 20 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   There is one group in Lyttelton who have used the same 

geotechnical engineering company, Coffey, for a number of properties, 

I believe seven, and that is in the Endeavour Place, Norton Close area.  

That is not myself, but I have also used Coffey.   25 

 

 I approached Coffey to see if they would act as an expert witness 

across all their clients to save yourselves’ time and ourselves time, but 

they declined and they said that they felt that the cases stood each on 

their merits and it was not possible to generalise.  However, one thing 30 

did come out which was that the level of granularity of the analysis 

done by Coffey, and I believe other expert witnesses such as Eliot 

Sinclair, provides greater detail than I have yet seen in Council and I 

am not sure whether the Council has that level of detail, particularly in 

the topographical analysis. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well, those are matters that go to the substance of the 

case which if the Panel needs to hear differences of expert opinion on 

that we will.  But prior to our hearing of course there will be expert 

witness conferencing and some of these things might be aired in that 40 

process to see, ideally, any differences of opinion being narrowed to 

matters of true substance and we will have to wait and see about that. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Yes, Coffey said to me that they would not come as a 

general expert witness, only on a case by case basis. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, and they will be mindful, as other experts are, of 

their obligations and the Code and everything else, if they cannot 

support a case or so forth then they would say so early to their client. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Thank you. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So we have covered consolidation and specification of 

relief I think to the extent we need to at the moment.  Are there any 

other issues in that area where individual parties were seeking any 

direction from the Panel on the clarity of relief in other submissions?  10 

Having had a quick look through those that are relevant today I did not 

spot anything. 

 

 So now we come to the issue of clarification and narrowing of issues.  

For those of you here who are not accustomed to these sort of processes 15 

and appreciate that they are quite new for many of you, there is a 

process in place and if you look at our website for these sorts of things 

you will see a hearings procedures in there as well as obviously the 

Order in Council provides for this as well.  

 20 

  [10.30 am] 

 

 And just so that the Panel can run as an efficient and focused a hearing 

as possible there are pre-hearing processes which are going to be 

instigated and Dr Sutherland, a Commissioner of the Environment 25 

Court has kindly agreed to facilitate expert conferencing in this area.  

There is also the question of mediation which is a separate process.  

The represented parties are familiar with those things, Mr Cowie is 

very familiar with these things, but if you have any questions as a lay 

representative, or someone for the first time, please ask. 30 

 

 Yes, Mr le Marquand? 

 

MR LE MARQUAND:   Sir, I am actually involved in expert conferencing 

next door, so I wonder if I could just indulge the Panel and just put in 35 

an appearance on behalf of the oil companies and indicate that I will be 

a planning witness and we are looking to have either Mr Simon 

Edmonds or Dr Toan to provide some geotech engineering evidence, 

and we expect that Mr Cameron Taylor will also provide some 

additional technical matters relating to the infrastructure. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, thank you very much.  Good luck with your 

conferencing. 
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 So just clarification and narrowing of issues.  On the issue, just a subset 

of that question of mediation, I notice for instance – first of all there is 

a difference between mediation and expert conferencing. 

 

 Mediation is as between parties on a without prejudice basis, we try to 5 

get a facilitator in for that as well, and whether it is Dr Sutherland or 

someone else.  It is different from expert conferencing where experts 

attend and they do so in accordance with the Code of Conduct in an 

endeavour to narrow their issues. 

 10 

 So in terms of the question of mediation and looking at the matter of 

relief, is there anyone here for Rockgas? 

 

MS DIXON:   Yes, Rosemary Dixon for Rockgas, sir. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, Ms Dixon, I notice your relief, I am not prejudging 

this but I wondered whether there was any – your relief was, as I 

understand it, in part at least, to see if there could be an exemption for 

buildings that are non-habitable and impervious from restrictions that 

would otherwise apply in regard to habitable buildings? 20 

 

MS DIXON:   Yes, sir that is correct. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is that something where you have explored the capacity 

for mediation? 25 

 

MS DIXON:   We have not, but I am sure that it is subject to mediation.  I 

think it is a point that was raised by a number of other submitters as 

well.  I think Liquigas might have a similar point. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS DIXON:   It is not, I imagine, a subject of technical expert conferencing, 

but more a policy approach I would have thought that the planners 

would be able to address in mediation. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Winchester, I do not intend to and do not prejudge it, 

there may be substantive reasons why there is this regime applicable to 

non-habitable buildings, impervious buildings, but if there was not, is 

that something where mediation could be explored? 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Absolutely, sir.  It sounds like the very sort of subject 

matter that would benefit from mediation.  It does not appear at first 

sight to raise any particular technical issues.  If there are, I would 

assume that could come out through the mediation process in itself as 45 
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to what the underlying policy reason was for treating those buildings 

the same as other buildings. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  If it is a narrow and relatively simple thing, it may 

be that there is no justification for a facilitator, it may be that Council 5 

and Rockgas and any other relevant parties could work through their 

issues.  But perhaps we could leave it in hand for the parties to tell us 

pretty quickly whether mediation would be of assistance if it was 

facilitated. 

 10 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, what I suggest, perhaps that I have a 

conversation with Ms Dixon and any other parties in the same boat, and 

take some instructions from the Council and let us see if we can work 

our way through it and then possibly return to the Panel if there is a 

need for mediation on that particular point. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes thank you.  And while you are on your feet, 

Mr Winchester, are there any other matters in regard to mediation 

facilitation that you can see some benefit for the Panel to make 

directions? 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Not in particular, but there is one matter I did want to 

raise to deal with clarification and narrowing of issues. 

 

 There have been numerous submissions on permitted activity rules in 25 

liquefaction assessment areas 1 and 2, which cover large parts of the 

city, and I am not sure exactly how many, but it is possibly up to 

around a 100, and it deals with in chapter 5, clause 5.9.1, permitted 

activities in those liquefaction assessment areas 1 and 2. 

 30 

  [10.35 am] 

 

 And there is under that heading, an advice note which says there are no 

permitted activities in respect of rule 5.9. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That has attracted a lot of attention, it is not particularly 

clear, and in fact the intention of that note is inaccurate and the Council 

does intend to clarify that and it may mean that a number of those 40 

submissions are able to be resolved if people understand exactly what 

is meant by it. 

 

 Essentially what it means is that all activities in those liquefaction 

assessment areas do not need consent, so there are in fact permitted 45 

activities there. 
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 So we will be lodging a Memorandum of Counsel to that effect, and it 

may be up to individual submitters to advise whether that resolves their 

issues and we might be able to clear away a lot of the volume of 

individuals that are involved in this particular matter, sir. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It seemed to be pretty relevant in terms of the early 

information on that in view of the fact we intend a second pre hearing 

meetings with a range of submitters who are not calling expert 

witnesses. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, well I think in my submission, a lot of those 

parties would be interested in this particular – I will not really call it a 

provision, it is an advice note and it is not very helpful, sir.  So if that 

has clarified that it may mean that the lay submitters are able to deal 15 

with matters of genuine substance at the next pre hearing meeting. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   When do you think you could have that memorandum in by? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   This week, sir. 20 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Say Friday. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 25 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   So that is the only additional matter I want to raise with 

the Council, but in terms of mediation and caucusing, there have been 

discussions with my learned friends for the Crown about how that is 30 

going to play out, and I think our preference is still that there be a 

slightly staggered approach in terms of caucusing taking place with 

mediation about provisions or caucusing about provisions by the 

planning witnesses following shortly thereafter, and it would be helpful 

to get some clarity around the methodology and the modelling and the 35 

technical work and the planners can follow on. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, again for the layperson who has not been in this 

process before, caucusing is just another word for expert conferencing.  

That logic is something that I want to explore actually. 40 

 

 Just coming back to your first point, I wonder whether this would be an 

example where the memorandum, for instance, you mentioned on 

clarifying that issue.  Obviously it would be posted on the website but 

in terms of natural hazards and the individual property impacts of those 45 

and this is one area where there is a large number of people in the 
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community that put themselves into the process because of issues they 

see at a very personal level on their property. 

 

 Whether it would be for the Council to perhaps write a circular letter 

accompanying that memorandum and providing it to - effectively 5 

sending it to the address for service for the submitters that are going to 

be attending. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, I am sure that could be done, all the addresses 

are on the database. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, just so that people do not get, for instance, 

bamboozled by the sort of legality of it.  Effectively get a covering 

letter to say this is what means, the Council wants to make this clear. 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  And is there any indication at this stage as to 

when the second pre hearing meeting might be, late January, is it? 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I think it is 27 January. 

 20 

MR WINCHESTER:   I see, well that could certainly be done and well in 

advance of that pre hearing. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Do not hold me to that date but I think that is the date we have 

agreed on.  25 

   

JUDGE HASSAN:   Certainly, so someone could go out, for instance, in 

perhaps the second week of January, or something, for people to come 

back to and say, oh well.  It would obviously have to be very clear to 

them sort of thing, that they were not losing any rights and effectively 30 

in a position where the Council is committed to this effectively being 

the intended meaning and this is the meaning the Council understands. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am certainly happy to take instructions on that, but I 

do not think we need a direction from the Panel. 35 

 

  [10.40 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well it may be that Mr Cowie can just assist in all of 

that too in terms of just helping the Council get that message out. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Absolutely.  We will obviously make reference to the 

availability of his advice in any letter to individual landowners, sir. 

 

45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  So just on the question of expert conferencing and 

mediation, in effect item 6.  Really the proper order is the other way 

round for this is it not?  Expert conferencing should precede any 

mediation steps that might follow if there are any.  Bearing in mind we 

talked about the Rockgas and related issues as a separate sample of 5 

something which could possibly be sorted through.  And so there are 

the technical areas, there is the modelling and what you call the 

methodology. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And then the policy that applies to that, and we have 

heard from Mr Radich on that, the Crown’s position effectively being 

let us try to narrow as far as we can in that first area so that we can 

properly focus on the importance of the second area, which is the 15 

policy response to the sites. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is right, sir.  And really the motivation there is to 

make the Panel’s task easier rather than having to choose between two 

significantly different underlying technical views.  There may be 20 

differences.  There obviously probably will be differences in terms of 

some of the methodology and the technical input, but really we want 

that gap to be as narrow as possible so we can focus on how the Plan 

actually approaches this issue. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  And we have got subsets of that modelling and 

methodology question have we not?  We have got that subset that 

relates to water. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   How many subsets are there?  As I understand it there are 

about three or four models in regard to water and the consequences for 

floor levels.  Am I correct?  In terms of catchments.  I think I read that 

somewhere in the - - - 35 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  And there obviously sea level rise is an influence 

there as well. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   So I think there are around three or four models 

involved for flooding and flood plain management.  In terms of the 

slope instability – are we done with flooding from your perspective? 

 45 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so that is the second category of modelling is it? 
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MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  So that is the work that GNS has been involved in 

and there is both slope instability and rock fall, plus there is a risk 

assessment which overlies that in terms of fatality risk. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes and submissions target both in some ways.  Some say 

we think the risk in terms of this and that is sufficient enough for us to 

be able to proceed with our lives.  Others (INDISTINCT 3.10) that 

sort of thing.  So that is where the policy question comes in underneath 

it. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, that is correct.  And finally there is general 

liquefaction and seismology technical work about which there are very 

few submissions. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  So in terms of making sure we make best use of 

Dr Sutherland’s valuable time in facilitating the expert conferencing do 

you have some thoughts on how this is going to work in terms of these 

different chapters and topics, how they might be ordered?  When 

models can – how models – the memorandum you are going to put in 20 

will relate to all of that in terms of access to the model by the relevant 

experts.  And by Dr Sutherland himself presumably in terms of being 

able to facilitate. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  The slope instability issues are the most 25 

contentious. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And for that reason may be the most time consuming.  30 

And the suggestion is that if it is possible they should go first. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Be followed by the flood hazard management issues and 35 

finally liquefaction risk in terms of divvying up the topics. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That seems to be the most logical order.  Obviously it is 40 

hard to predict exactly how long that conferencing will take.  One 

would imagine, particularly with slope instability issues and the three 

inputs into that, may take some time. 

 

45 
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  [10.45 am] 

 

SIR HANSEN:   A Day?  Days?  What should we allow?  If we allow three 

days, or two days or? 

 5 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well it may be that – and again it is hard to predict, sir, 

but often what happens is that the issues are discussed and then further 

work is done, or technical work needs to be completed or further 

analysis needs to be completed, and so there is a degree of fluidity 

around how it needs to be dealt with in these technical areas, 10 

particularly where there is some - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   We need to get a ballpark figure for planning really. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I would have thought possibly a week, sir? 15 

 

SIR HANSEN:   That is including the coming and going is it? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Because there are overseas experts involved in 

some of these matters. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I am just thinking back to past experience, that is why I 

am pausing a minute, where I was representing the Transport Agency 

in regard to the Transmission Gully inquiry a few years ago.  The 

expert conferencing there took some time, as you said more than a 25 

week, and there were several sessions required because they were quite 

gnarly issues.   

 

 Are you thinking that perhaps in this area the process of expert 

conferencing under Dr Sutherland’s guidance would start and it would 30 

be for Dr Sutherland to work through a programme of perhaps different 

sessions and followup with a report back perhaps set allowing for 

homework to be done and sessions to be undertaken over a series from 

a start date to perhaps an end date? 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well that would obviously be the most efficient way of 

dealing with it and create quite a bit of discipline around that process so 

that it was not open-ended.  I suspect some of the discipline will be 

added by the Panel’s timetable in that there will be a drop-dead date in 

terms of evidence preparation and wherever the experts have got to 40 

through their caucusing process will have to cease for the preparation 

of evidence. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It is obviously important to get that balance right because 

if for instance a resolvable issue ends up having to be contended the 45 

subject of working it through in contention, particularly if you are 
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dealing with issues of modeling methodology the time for the hearing 

can consequently significantly blow out.  And obviously that may need 

to happen, that there may need to be these issues in a contentious 

setting, but if the parties think that they may be able to be worked 

through first to a point where the focus can be more on policy 5 

differences then clearly that helps the efficiency of the hearing. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  And it may be that in terms of evidence 

exchange the parties agree it is necessary to push matters out slightly to 

accommodate the need for further discussions, or if evidence is filed 10 

that might then provide a basis for mediation. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Could you pause a moment? 15 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly, sir. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So a drop-dead date is 2 March is it not?  That is when we 

are now looking at the hearing starting.  Working back from there the 

start date effectively is I understand in terms of availability of 

facilitated conferencing is February, the beginning of February.  

Dr Sutherland is there anything you want to comment on there? 25 

 

DR SUTHERLAND:   We could start earlier than that, sir.  I have some days 

available in January that I have communicated to Mr (INDISTINCT 

4.31) and I can discuss with him following this particular session any 

matters that could be facilitated. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 

 

DR SUTHERLAND:   I do have some degree of flexibility and my first offer 

was the harsh one so to speak. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

DR SUTHERLAND:   Keeping something up my sleeve. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That is very handy.  So I suggest what is best done here is 

clearly we cannot move – we cannot have our hearing move out.  What 

we are focused on is making sure that hearing is as efficient as possible.   

 

45 
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  [10.50 am] 

 

 It is really incumbent on counsel to really think hard about how much 

time is required on this and we will make directions once we are guided 

further by when that start date should be in order that we have proper 5 

end date prior to the commencement of the hearing which cannot go 

later than effectively 2 March in order to keep to the programme. 

 

 But bearing in mind Dr Sutherland’s indication there, if it is prudent to 

allow more time from the start date to the drop dead-date then perhaps 10 

counsel can think about that even if it needs to start in January or late 

January. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   And the days available in January, if we take into account 

what you were saying, that there will be a need to go away and do more 15 

homework and come back again.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is correct, sir. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   So if we can get the process underway. 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I have to admit that I was not aware of the 2 March 

commencement date. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well, we were going to start on 16 February and we had this 25 

approach, and we indicated we would bring other stuff forward if we 

could and we have extended out two weeks, but we have got some 

rather large chapters coming in behind this as well. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am conscious of that, sir.  You will understand of 30 

course that the reason for the approach is the very technical nature of 

this particular issue, possibly more so than any other issue that you 

might face during the course of this process.   

 

 My learned friends for the Crown and Ms Scott and I had a discussion 35 

yesterday about a timetable which we may have to revisit I suspect in 

light of your indication that 2 March is when we are kicking off. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Can you signal what you had in mind? 

 40 

MR WINCHESTER:   I can, sir.  What we had worked to was a 16 March 

starting date for the hearing which I understand is - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well, that is not – start again. 

 45 

MR WINCHESTER:   All right, sir.   
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SIR HANSEN:   Unless you can tell us how we can fit in what we are required 

to do under the Order in Council in the timeframe we have by delaying 

this hearing effectively by four weeks? 

 5 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Well, what - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Even accepting what you say about the technical nature and 

that that is the most complex of this process and, you know, the 

Council is just going to have to make resources available. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am aware of that, sir.  What could - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   It is not our timetable we are working to, it is the Order in 

Council’s timetable. 15 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, understood.  With that in mind and rather on 

the fly - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, rather than do it on the fly, Mr Winchester, I do not 20 

think that is fair on you, I think the proper thing would be for us to set 

directions along the theory that you are describing once counsel has 

had a chance to further discuss – unless you are quite ready and able to 

do it now? 

 25 

MR RADICH:   I wonder if there could be a five minute break, your Honour, 

just for there to be some discussion around that between counsel? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Certainly. 

 30 

SIR HANSEN:   Discussions are always valuable, we will give you 

10 minutes, Mr Radich. 

 

MR RADICH:   Thank you, sir. 

 35 

ADJOURNED [10.53 am] 

 

RESUMED [11.04 am] 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Now, I apologise if some of you could not hear me, it is 

this microphone system, which I will stay over here a little bit and you 

will be able to hear me a bit better.  All right, so how did you get on? 

 45 
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  [11.05 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, we have come up with something that fits in with 

the 2 March start date.  What it will require is probably caucusing and 

mediation to occur through January. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And I think a revised view of whether there is a need for 

staggering, I do not think we are going to have that luxury.  I think the 10 

mediation on plan provisions needs to run in parallel with the 

caucusing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, well, before we settle the date, just in terms of, so 

that all parties understand, the Council is seeking a number of changes 15 

itself to the plan provisions? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is right. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And it is important I think for all parties not to get lost in 20 

the trail of different changes and so forth that are happening.  Has any 

thought been given to whether or not an updated Council version of the 

plan provisions, if the Council intends to, it will be at the starting point 

be circulated at some point? 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is a very sensible suggestion, sir, and could be 

readily done for early January. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, okay.  Mr Cowie, is there anything, I am just mindful 

you are down the back of the room listening on behalf of a range of 30 

people.  Are there any thoughts you have in that area? 

 

MR COWIE:   Yes, sir, I was approached by a number of people at morning 

tea who were keen to see a transparent process with any Council 

changes because they believe it may mean that they no longer need to 35 

appear at the hearing or it will narrow the issues for them.  So a 

transparent process of Council changes that was notified to the relevant 

submitters early on, particularly I think in relation to site specific rock 

fall type hazards would be immensely helpful, thank you. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so they are in the position to say, “Oh, well, my 

property is no longer in the gun or whatever” and they are in a position 

then to take account of whether they need to appear or not. 

 

MR COWIE:   Yes, sir, thank you. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay.  All right, well, Mr Winchester, I think as you 

indicated early January would be good for that.  Now, in terms of 

conferencing, I had a chance to talk to Commissioner Sutherland 

during the break, and there are two things here and first of all – you can 

sit down if you like for a minute.   5 

 

 The first thing is for the large number of parties here, including a 

number of represented parties that have not nominated their expert 

witnesses, we are not going to require you to put them down on paper 

before you end the session today as that would be premature.  But those 10 

names and areas of expertise are required in order for conferencing to 

occur in January, and so the direction will be that all parties are to 

provide a list of their names and areas of expertise by Friday, 

9 January.   

 15 

 And I think Commissioner Sutherland has some availability in the 

week commencing 12 January on Monday or Tuesday that week only, 

and would like to commence the conferencing with an initial plenary 

session involving all experts on either of those two days, Monday or 

Tuesday, 12 or 13 January, so directions would issue in regard to that. 20 

 

 Commissioner Sutherland, is there anything in regard to that you 

wanted to further clarify or does that cover it? 

 

DR SUTHERLAND:   I think, sir, there were three areas identified over which 25 

such caucusing was required.  Given the timeframe, I think it is 

essential that those three areas be considered in parallel rather than in 

series.   

 

 And so my intention would be that at the plenary session, and let us call 30 

it that, on the 12th or 13th, that all three of the areas are represented.  

We will have a talk about how we are going to run the caucusing and 

then each of the three groups will go off and start work and we will 

determine a timetable for reporting back and then further sessions with 

each of the groups, probably separately, but that remains to be seen.  I 35 

think the important think, sir, is that they work in parallel and they start 

on 12 or 13 January. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you, Commissioner Sutherland.  Any questions 

in regard to those matters, yes, down the back? 40 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Just in regard to conferencing - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I know that you have said your name before, just repeat 

your name each it, it just helps with the transcript.   45 
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  [11.10 am] 

 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Nicole Lauenstein again here.  With regard to 

conferencing and not all expert witnesses will be able to participate in 

that, if you consider there might be just a single property affected and 5 

funds not available for this, with private lot owners.  Is there a chance 

of getting a summary of the conferencing to be made available for 

those that then provide expert witness statements in the hearing? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just a couple of things about that.  First of all, in terms of 10 

the obligations of an expert.  So an expert is an independent expert in 

the sense subject to directions of the Panel, and the Panel would direct 

that those experts that are going to give evidence in areas that are 

contested, must attend conferencing, must attend expert conferencing.  

It is mandatory. 15 

 

 And in terms of the cost of that, the experience of the Panel and the 

members is that if you look back at a hearing after effective expert 

conferencing, you usually save significant cost in time, so at the end of 

the day it is a benefit to all parties that it happen.  20 

 

 So I am afraid to say that in that area, we are not in a position to give a 

licence for an expert or experts to decide not to attend because they 

cannot afford it, it is necessary for the best outcome of the process. 

 25 

MS LAUENSTEIN:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR MILLER:   Darryl Miller, sir. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, Mr Miller.  I just want to clarify a point you made 

earlier regarding the Rockgas submission, and I think you indicated 

that it may be possible to arrive at a result that does not necessarily 

require expert caucusing under a direction from the Panel.  35 

 

 And I take it that you are suggesting there, sir, that it might be 

incumbent upon those submitters who believe that they might be able 

to have a policy or a planning response that is not dependent upon 

expert witnesses to liaise directly with the city on that matter. 40 

 

 Is that correct, sir? 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I understand that your submission would relate to the 

fact that in some ways, the University is indicating a policy response is 

sought in regard to activity status, for instance, and whether or not the 

expert – there is a contention around, say liquefaction, or whatever else.   

 5 

 Typically expert conferencing should precede mediation because it 

narrows the points within which the parties were previously in dispute 

and therefore assists the mediation.  But of course, the Panel would 

encourage what you were saying, that proactivity in approaching other 

parties to see if, in fact, issues can be narrowed at any time is certainly 10 

of assistance. 

 

 The Rockgas example without prejudging the merits, because I do not 

know the ins and outs of that, looked like one of those potential 

examples and I think that has been confirmed by Counsel. 15 

 

MR MILLAR:   Thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So I think in terms of that, Mr Winchester, is there 

anything further, I think the timetable is now relatively clear and what 20 

needs to happen? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly from discussions I have had with my friends 

over the break, we think there is a workable timetable provided that 

caucusing does commence on 12 January, and what we have suggested 25 

is an end date for the caucusing of 30 January. 

 

 In terms of mediation or indeed, policy caucusing, it is hard to know a 

distinction between the two.  Let us just say perhaps, call it, caucusing 

or discussions about the plan provisions.  That can happen both 30 

informally and to the extent that if there is more detailed conferencing 

required, the suggestion is that that could be arranged via the 

secretariat. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 35 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   So again provide some discipline around that.  The 

same end date would be suggested for that stream of work, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  So the end date would be 30 January for planning? 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  That would leave, also in terms of the timetable 

that I am going to suggest, sir, the first week of February for further 

mediations around plan provisions as a consequence of both the 

technical and policy caucusing. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:    With the Council’s evidence-in-chief due on Friday 13 

February. 

 5 

SIR HANSEN:   Very auspicious. 

 

  [11.15 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Very ominous, but all submitters evidence to you on 10 

Friday 20 - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   - - - and rebuttal evidence due on Friday 27th for the 15 

Council with the hearing to start on the Monday, so possibly a bit of 

reading for the Panel over the weekend, but unavoidable given the 

timeframe, sir.  And also, in terms of legal submissions, one would 

hope that the process would have distilled the issues fairly clearly for 

the Panel’s benefit and they should reasonably evident from the 20 

evidence. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I think also, it is probably going to apply to every hearing.  

What we have done with Strategic Directions which is a brief opening 

and then a more fulsome closing around legal submission after the 25 

evidence would apply.  I think we can almost accept that as the default 

position. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  Absolutely happy with that, sir, particularly if 

there is also a direction that submissions need not be filed in advance, 30 

so essentially the parties turn up with their submissions - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Opening ones. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   - - - yes, correct, sir.  And they can perhaps be confined 35 

to 15 minutes at the most.  People can write as much as they like in 

terms of their written submission, but they have 15 minutes to speak to 

them. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Yes, that is sensible. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   So that is the suggestion, sir, and I am certainly 

encouraged by Dr Sutherland’s proposal in terms of the way that the 

caucusing should play out in January, and I think that discipline in 

terms of setting the ground rules, and having the witnesses go and carry 45 

out their conferencing during January, is very useful. 
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 Just an issue there as to whether it may be necessary to have a 

facilitator for each of those conferencing streams given Commissioner 

Sutherland’s availability during January, and he could perhaps have 

more of an oversight role.  I am not particularly sure about that, I just 5 

simply throw that out there as a suggestion. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It is clearly important to have the right person in the role 

and all the right people in that facilitation role and obviously the 

advantage of Dr Sutherland’s expertise in this area, and the fortunate 10 

availability at this time, particularly in that January area. 

 

 But obviously if Commissioner Sutherland wants to indicate anything 

to us on that he can, but I would be inclined to leave that unchanged in 

the meantime. 15 

 

 But coming to the facilitation of the planning conferencing, mindful of 

the experiences of the Panel in regard to Strategic Directions, where it 

seemed prudent to have someone with the skill set to facilitate properly.  

Mr Chrisp has been involved in that role there, do parties have any 20 

views about appropriate facilitation and the skill set for that for 

planning conferencing? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I think facilitation is probably useful in that it keeps 

people focused.  I am not in any sense suggesting that planners are 25 

unfocused, but - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just somebody with, again, the ability to lead in a 

facilitative sense discussion, understanding the language, I guess, in 

that sort of process. 30 

 

MR RADICH:   I think that would be very helpful, sir.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 35 

MR RADICH:   I cannot think of anyone in particular, but I have no reason to 

doubt that Mr Chrisp could do it, he certainly has had experience with 

natural hazards issues and geotechnical issues through a lot of work he 

has done in the central North Island. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR RADICH:   And he may have an appropriate base level to at least 

understand the planning language and the planning approach and assist 

with that facilitation. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you, and there are a couple of other parties I 

think I would like to just test and there may be other Panel questions on 

this but in regard to, for instance, the logistics of that facilitation of 

discussion on planning provisions, and obviously parties and the Panel 

were under unavoidable timetable pressures on the first hearing which 5 

we have just had, and parties did their very best obviously in those 

straightened times to do what they did, and the Panel ended up with 

three different main theories of provisions and other parties responded 

to that and of course, there is conferencing on today as a followup. 

 10 

  [11.20 am] 

 

 Just on this, and it may be you Mr Radich, and also perhaps Mr 

Williams and there may be one or two others, but I notice for instance 

in looking at the Crown’s submission there is a range, a relatively 15 

extensive range, of relief sought which would presumably translate into 

significant drafting.  But nevertheless on the theory of the Crown’s 

submission and overall submission in case (ph 0.22) and just Mr 

Radich I notice Mr Williams, Lyttelton Port Company, is also 

suggesting a bespoke zoning for instance for its relief.  Would it be 20 

helpful or not to start with one base document and then indicate 

changes that are sought in regard to that or would it be better to start 

with different starting points and put those into facilitated 

conferencing? 

 25 

MR RADICH:   I think it would be helpful for there to be the base document 

that my learned friend Mr Winchester was talking about being able to 

prepare that incorporates the Council’s proposed changes.  I think that 

is the start point is it not? 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The start point – yes. 

 

MR RADICH:   And then I think there would be real merit in the Crown being 

able to perhaps and other parties to use that document.  What I am just 

conscious of is getting into the position which of course was inevitable 35 

in the hearing we have just had given timing of these different versions 

emerging, and I can sense here there might be more than three given 

the varying views, and that is something to be avoided perhaps.  But if 

the Council version was available then perhaps the Crown could 

overlay on a copy of that, its suggestions, and maybe the conferencing 40 

could start from there or other parties could perhaps do a similar 

exercise so that the outcome of the conferencing is at least something 

more refined than separate versions.   
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 That is a very unformed thought I suspect as I say that out loud, but 

there needs to be some thought about how to achieve something a little 

different and more focused at the end of the caucusing process. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Just in order that the Panel understands where the 5 

differences are. 

 

MR RADICH:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And does not get tripped up unnecessarily on different 10 

structural approaches. 

 

MR RADICH:   I think one document with – ideally at the end of the caucusing 

process you would have a document that would have the Council’s 

changes and would have mark ups perhaps in different colours with 15 

comments boxes showing where as a result of the narrowing down that 

the bottom line is as at 30 January that might be the way to achieve it.  

And hopefully there are not too many colours and boxes by that stage. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  For those people in the room who have not been to a 20 

process like this, do not be alarmed by this sort of conversation.  It does 

not indicate a view has been taken at all on the merits.  The important 

thing from a Panel point of view is to understand how the theories of 

different cases can be translated onto paper, and it does not prejudice 

the ability for instance of a submission to be made on a more 25 

substantive basis against a provision or in support of a provision.  It is 

simply to assist the Panel understand the cases before it. 

 

 Mr Williams.  Just in terms of the Port Company’s position for a – I 

understood a bespoke planning regime was part of the submission? 30 

 

MR WILLIAMS:   Yes that is correct.  I am sort of conscious of the logistics 

that are probably going to rule against an initial consolidated version, 

but I certainly would like to think the process outlined by my friend, in 

terms of at least key parties in terms of interests, perhaps coming up 35 

with a version and then trying to work that into hopefully one single 

consolidated version with comments as to what is agreed and not 

agreed by the end of the processes.  Probably inevitably the only 

approach that is going to work. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you.  And again those submitters that have 

submitted in regard to Lyttelton matters for instance, all that would do 

is to assist – it should assist you to see the focus of the Port Company’s 

position and how it relates to other things rather than impedes you. 

 45 

MR WILLIAMS:   Yes. 
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MS STUBENVOLL:   Please sir, one of the items which we would be raising 

which is not strictly an expert matter is that within Council’s holding 

they have individual detailed pieces of work which have been 

submitted for a number of reasons.  For example temporary 5 

accommodation allowances and things like that, and those detailed 

equivalent ground truthing pieces of work because they have been in 

another department from the planning department were not taken into 

account we found.   

 10 

 So could we ask Council to please troll through their other departments 

and find those submissions on between the earthquake and now, which 

they have already received and have been validated by their own 

geotechnical engineers, that those submissions be taken into account 

when they consider what they are going to put forward for this 15 

combined base that we start from.   

 

  [11.25 am] 

 

 It is very frustrating to have had stuff submitted to Council and to find 20 

that it has not been taken into account because it is in another 

department. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Winchester, have you got any response to that 

request? 25 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I can understand the basis for the point that is being 

raised.  I do not have sufficient instructions to be able to respond to it, 

sir.  I will take instructions. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  It is not a matter for direction at this time but 

perhaps just encourage you to have the followup and talk about it.  But 

I cannot make any specific directions in regard to that.  It depends on 

matters which the Panel is not fully aware of.  

 35 

SIR HANSEN:   Nor has jurisdiction over. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That is right.  Which is the other thing I was leading to 

which is the jurisdictional limits of the Panel.  So the Panel has a task 

to do under the Order in Council which is to consider and make 40 

determinations on this Plan and to consider in that light the submissions 

and further submissions on this Plan.  And really it is a matter for 

parties which that scope to make their case they wish to make, but you 

heard Mr Winchester and he has kindly indicated he will see what he 

can do, but it is a matter between parties and not for the Panel at this 45 
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time.  Yes?  Sorry, you cannot see the people behind you and I can.  

Someone is standing at the back. 

 

MR ELMEY:   Hi, I am Phil Elmey, part of the Port Hills Residents Group.  I 

would just like to add to what Sue brought up in that a lot of relevant 5 

information which informed the proposed zoning has actually been 

removed from the Council’s website and is no longer available to us.  I 

was surprised that that had happened.  It has happened relatively 

recently and we do not think that that is right.   

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well comments and observations would apply and I 

just encourage you to take them on board.  Yes?  I think man in 

checked shirt. 

 

MR CASE:   Yes, Michael Case.  Case family submission.  I have been sent 15 

down here by legal counsel, Tony Hughes-Johnson, and I have got to 

indicate that we will be calling two expert witnesses, Martin Sinclair 

from Eliot Sinclair and this most senior planner, Kim McCracken, and 

in addition Tony will be making legal submissions.  He has also 

indicated to me that we are happy to confer with Council officers to see 20 

if accommodation is possible.  So I suppose that means we would enter 

into mediation.  Is that correct? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You will be able to take part in mediation if that is 

available.  Effectively the mediation system is one where parties can 25 

talk to each other at any time and it is really a matter between parties to 

do that if they want to, and the Panel would encourage those sort of 

discussions.  And then the question is does the Panel need to see if it 

can arrange for facilitated mediation and the Panel will consider that in 

light of how things are progressing on conferencing as well.   30 

 

 But if parties think there is a particular need for it then I would suggest 

the first step is to talk to Council, Mr Winchester is here or Mr Hughes-

Johnson can take up our discussions and see where those go for any 

value in mediation.  But it is particularly helpful, Mr Case, that you 35 

have thought about already the areas of expert evidence that would be 

called and Mr Sinclair is an engineer, I think, is he not? 

 

MR CASE:   Yes.  The Case family has had ongoing things with the Council 

with TC1 and he will be well aware of what has happened to our 40 

family. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR CASE:   Thank you. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   So the expert conferencing sessions would be available to 

Mr Sinclair in regard to the technical one.  Mr McCracken would be 

involved in the planning one. 

 

MR CASE:   That is right.  Thank you. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Yes thank you.  Mr Smyth. 

 

MR SMYTH:   Thank you, sir.  I am just wondering if the Panel is aware.  I 

filed a joint memorandum of counsel yesterday, late yesterday 10 

afternoon, it is in relation to caucusing and it was briefly discussed with 

my learned friends for the Council and the Crown as part of the expert 

caucusing that we would be looking for a ground truthing to occur on 

that site specific basis in relation to submitter properties, so it might 

have the advantage of, if the experts can agree, it might cut out a series 15 

of properties from consideration full stop, and it might free up hearing 

time and evidence for other matters. 

 

  [11.30 am] 

 20 

 It was also suggested in the joint memorandum that the Panel might 

consider appointing their own independent geotechnical expert to assist 

parties who perhaps could not afford to instruct somebody.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That first point you made, I just missed the first word, 25 

“ground” what? 

 

MR SMYTH:   Ground truthing in site specific examination of properties by 

geotechnical engineers for the Crown, the Council and submitters, so 

perhaps they could agree in relation to a joint position in relation to 30 

properties.  It would presumably involve a topographical analysis of 

individual properties as well. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just in terms of the content of what occurs and what is 

under the auspices of expert conferencing, I think it would be best for 35 

the Panel to allow Dr Sutherland to facilitate and lead and guide that 

according to his judgement on those sorts of things, so not to make any 

specific directions on that as this time. 

 

MR SMYTH:   Thank you, sir. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And the danger of doing that is simply to not quite fully 

understand the issues and make the wrong sort of direction so I think it 

is best done in the context of conferencing.  So your expert attending 

that can raise those issues within that context and test where they go. 45 
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MR SMYTH:   I suppose, sir, the advantage of having it happen it might 

actually free up time for other matters in that sense if the experts can 

agree in relation to properties that they were wrongly included in the 

various zones that would, I submit, be of great advantage to the Panel. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, perhaps give that some further thought and if you 

think it should the subject of a direction at some point you might want 

to make an application so the Panel can properly consider it and other 

parties can respond to it. 

 10 

MR SMYTH:  Well, I have filed a memorandum, sir, and it has been 

circulated.  You may not have – it was just filed yesterday afternoon. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Filed yesterday afternoon? 

 15 

MR SMYTH:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I have to say I am embarrassed because I have not 

actually seen it.  Do you have - - - 

 20 

SIR HANSEN:   Was it filed electronically? 

 

MR SMYTH:   Yes, electronically, sir, and by post.  So in fairness it was very 

late yesterday afternoon so I am not suggesting that you should have 

seen it, sir. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:    Yes, it is just sometimes the pigeon is a bit late with the 

post.   

 

MR SMYTH:   Yes, sir. 30 

 

 I should point out, sir, as well that I understand the Council are calling 

(INDISTINCT 3.51) get verification evidence from Mark Yetton, the 

geotechnical engineer, so that seems to suggest that there might be 

some utility if all the, well, submitters and the Crown and Council can 35 

agree that evidence. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, I think given the lateness of our ability to read this, 

not due to your bodging it just an opportunity to read it, the Panel 

should not make directions on it today.  The other thing I notice is that 40 

it is not signed by Mr Cleary - - - 

 

MR SMYTH:   It was filed by consent by the other counsel. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well, it is not signed by them. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Appleyard is on the back.  She would normally sign 

something if she consented to it but we have not had – so you are 

saying all of those counsel have informed the Panel - - - 

 

MR SMYTH:   Yes, sir, and they - - - 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - through separate correspondence that they agree to it? 

 

MR SMYTH:   Sorry, sir? 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Have the other counsel that have not signed it on the face 

of this version - - - 

 

MR SMYTH:   Yes, sir, they have. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - have they separately filed indications with the Panel 

saying they agree - - - 

 

  [11.35 am] 

 20 

MR SMYTH:   No, sir, they have not.  As I said I filed it yesterday afternoon 

after confirming it with my colleagues. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, secondly, the Panel will not be in a position to act 

on it as a joint memorandum until such time as it does have 25 

substantiation that that is the position from those counsel from them. 

 

MR SMYTH:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It is important for due process.  I am not sure if there are 30 

any positions on this from other counsel.  If other counsel who have 

had the opportunity to read this have any view at this stage? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, I have and we did briefly discuss the matter during 

our break and it occurs to me that there is probably no need for a 35 

direction, and that it might be a matter that can be traversed during the 

caucusing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well, that was my initial instinct, and without having 

read it, it seemed to be very much in the realm of what Dr Sutherland 40 

would be able to think about in terms of conferencing.  I think it would 

be premature to make directions at this stage, but thank you for your 

memorandum, we will see what other counsel, who are supposedly 

supporting it, say and I am not doubting your word, I am just saying it 

is important for us see that on paper. 45 
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MR SMYTH:   I will arrange that, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And then in due course a response can be made to it 

whether or not to make directions. 

 5 

MR SMYTH:   Thank you, sir. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, it is Mr Cleary. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Cleary, I did not see you there in the corner of the 10 

room. 

 

MR CLEARY:   On behalf of myself and Anna Cleary and also other 

submitters, Mr and Mrs Young, I have seen the contents of the 

memorandum and I fully approve them on behalf of myself and the 15 

Young’s.   

 

 My view is that what is suggested by Mr Smyth would be extremely 

beneficial to those submitters, particularly in terms of the resources that 

may be available to submitters who have challenged the accuracy of the 20 

zoning, and this is rock fall hazard management area 1 or 2 zoning.  

And I think it is fundamental that there are site visits incorporated into 

the process, and my submission would be that those site visits should 

be sooner rather than later in terms of parties who want those site visits 

to occur. 25 

 

 Picking up on what Sue said earlier, my understanding is the rock fall 

hazard management zone has been based – the various zones have been 

identified on the basis of modelling and in some cases, but in very 

limited cases my understanding is that there has been very limited land 30 

verification or ground truthing as Mr Smyth referred to. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, it may well be a position that submitters want to take 

and are entitled to take.  Obviously the Panel is in a position where 

really at this preliminary stage it has not seen any expert evidence, it is 35 

just – and which goes to the point about not being premature in making 

directions.   

 

 And as to site visits as well, I mean this may be an occasion where site 

visits are appropriate.  The question of timing of them is important.  A 40 

typical approach would be to have those site visits after opening 

submissions.  I think in this case we will probably want to think about 

that given the dynamics of this particular hearing. 

 

MR CLEARY:   That is correct. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   But while I hear your plea that it be done for particular 

properties at an early stage, I would urge you to make an application in 

regard to that, maybe suggest the particular properties so that the Panel 

can consider it, and the question of timing would then need to be 

considered.  It is possibly premature to do it before we have even seen 5 

the output of expert conferencing at that stage. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Thank you, sir.  I just wonder whether another alternative, and 

it does not necessarily require directions, would be for the Council 

perhaps to agree on that ground truthing process to occur sooner rather 10 

than later. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, I cannot see anything wrong with that suggestion 

other than the fact that it is really a matter for the Council and your 

client to discuss, it is really not for the Panel to direct anything. 15 

 

MR CLEARY:   As I said it is not necessarily a matter for direction on, I 

wonder on that basis whether my friend, Mr Winchester, might actually 

take instructions on that request. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, Mr Winchester has heard you and I am sure he will 

think about it. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Thank you, sir. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And it is a matter for parties, not the Panel at this point. 

 

 I think we may take the person at the back I think who may have been 

waiting for a while.  Sometimes it is hard to see a hand go up at the 

back of the room and then we will come back forward. 30 

 

MS HURL:   Brenda Hurl part of the Norton Close and Endeavour, the 

Lyttelton group that has come up several times just in the conversation 

here. 

 35 

  [11.40 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS HURL:   Just on the site visits, I know Ian Wright has carried out some 40 

geotech reports for the Council.  On our submission we had been told 

the information was available prior to the initial submission, but the 

Council had not passed the information over to us so we got our own 

geotech report carried out.  After all the submissions were closed, we 

did receive Ian’s report that matches exactly what our report says and 45 



 Page 39 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 16.12.14 

where the modelling has not taken into account the topography of the 

sites in the area. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you very much.  And have you met Mr Cowie? 

 5 

MS HURL:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so in terms of the direction in regard to parties 

indicating to the Panel their list of expert witnesses by 9 January, I hear 

what you are saying and with Mr Cowie’s assistance, you will be able 10 

to put that in a formal way to the Panel so that Mr Wright is noted as 

someone who can and would attend expert conferencing in that area if 

he is giving evidence as an expert, independent expert witness. 

 

 Just on that too, again, for those not familiar with the process, 15 

Mr Cowie can explain the Code of Conduct applied to those people 

who will read it and understand their responsibilities in regard to it. 

 

 Thank you. I understand Mr Wright is a Council witness, so I apologise 

for that. 20 

 

 All right.  Thank you. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   I apologise for speaking so frequently but I would like 

to agree on one half with the views presented, which is that submitters 25 

should bring in their own ground truthing, because that will help this 

process.  But my concern from the Panel in an overarching level, is that 

where consistently that ground truthing shows differences with the 

boundaries which have been put in by Council.   

 30 

 It runs the risk of putting all of those boundaries at risk.  If every 

attempt to change a boundary succeeds - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well of course, sorry, just to pause there.  This 

session here is not really for the substantive merits. 35 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You will have your opportunity to make your submission 

in due course, it is really just to set some ground rules in preparation 40 

for it. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Yes, but the request that these, that everybody - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well I understand you wish to support that position - 45 

- - 
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MS STUBENVOLL:   Yes, support it, but express the concern that those 

people who have not raised submissions, may also have been 

threatened by a rock fall boundary which is subsequently proven in 

every challenged case to be false, under the basis of the rock fall 5 

boundaries may therefore be thrown into doubt consistently. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I understand the point, it is really for the substantive 

submission, and in due course, but thank you. 

 10 

MS WATSON:  Counsel’s name is Ms Watson and I just wanted to confirm 

that I have seen the contents of the memorandum that Mr Smyth filed 

and indicated that I would file it on behalf of a number of groups that I 

was representing at the time, I just was not aware that it was being filed 

yesterday, I thought it was happening some weeks ago. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  All right, so I think in terms of – thank you, 

Mr Winchester, back to your suggestion for a preliminary schedule of 

exchange.  Does any other party take issue with that, I think we can 

make directions accordingly otherwise which was for Council evidence 20 

to be exchanged on 13 February, all submitted evidence on Friday 

20 February and rebuttal on Friday 27 February, subject to any views 

of any other parties proposing that, that would be in the minute that will 

issue from this. 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   Just two matters on timetable which I should bring to 

the Panel’s attention.   

 

 The first is I think there is a standing direction already for the names 

and disciplines of experts to be identified by 9 January - - - 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   - - - so a full list of witnesses required.  I am just 

wondering if that perhaps should be pushed forward a little given that - 35 

- - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You mean pushed to earlier than 9 January? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, given that conferencing is due to start, or at 40 

least the initial meeting, on the 12th. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well I mean we certainly want all experts to attend 

that conferencing that are giving evidence in those areas, and possibly 

we could bring it forward. 45 
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  [11.45 am] 

 

 I was being a little bit kind on the basis that it is getting near to 

Christmas, but perhaps 5 January is as good as the 9th in terms of 

parties ought to be in a position to actually confirm their witness 5 

availability before Christmas so that they comply with an obligation 

early in January, so perhaps we will make it the 5th. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, well if the relevant experts are going to be 

attending the caucusing, I would expect they should know that by then 10 

so that they are ready. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well subject to anyone having any concern about 

that, I think that is what we will do. 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   And the second issue, sir, is with regard to the starting 

point for mediations or planning conferencing, perhaps a direction that 

the Council circulate its version, updated version of the chapter by 

9 January? 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you.  Expert witness cross-examination or 

witness cross-examination, it is not just experts, the Panel will need to 

make directions around that to require parties to lodge their Notices of 

Intention to cross-examine.  

 25 

SIR HANSEN:   I think it is covered in the procedures, but is there anybody 

who suggests some other time the Notices of cross-examination should 

apply for this chapter?  Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so we have covered item 8, do I take that 30 

everyone is happy with Mr Chrisp taking the role of facilitating and in 

terms of his ability to also look at drafting issues as he does that? 

 

MR RADICH:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are there any other matters. 

 

MS WALSH:   Jane Walsh, sir, for Ngai Tahu Property Limited and 

Progressive Enterprises.  I just wanted to know or rather clarify, 

Dr Sutherland’s suggestion about the plenary session, it might be useful 40 

for planners, also just to attend that very first session, I was not sure 

whether you had intended those planners to be there or not. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, that is a good thought.  I think in terms of the 

plenary session, I will need to confer with Mr Chrisp as to his 

availability and issue directions around it, but I think in concept terms, 

there is probably some value in it, but I think probably to keep the 

planners and the technical experts in separate streams I think, rather 5 

than mix those two early, so it might be that we have a direction 

requiring the plenary attended by the planners (ph 2.46), are issued for 

early in the New Year as well.  If parties could bear that in mind, 

possibly around about the same time. 

 10 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir.  Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We will give some thought to that and subject to 

Mr Chrisp’s availability. 

 15 

 So any other matters?  

 

MR PEDLEY:   Thank you, just one point of clarification as well, and it is 

regarding the version of the provisions that the Council intends to 

circulate in early January. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR PEDLEY:  It may actually be a question more for Mr Winchester than the 

Panel, but just wondering if they could clarify whether that will include 25 

a response to the submissions, changes and response to the submissions 

that have been lodged, or whether it just reflects the changes that the 

Council sought in its own submission. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, but I mean I suppose it really is a matter for 30 

Mr Winchester and the Council’s position if they want to take a view to 

accept any particular submission and how they prepare that document 

is a matter for the Council. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, I suspect it is going to be the latter which is simply 35 

that the Council’s relief, and individual submissions can be worked 

through the caucusing session and informally as the Panel has 

suggested, but with regard to the Rockgas example. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thanks, Mr Winchester. 40 

 

 All right, are there any other issues? 
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MR SMYTH:   Yes, one last issue, sir.  A request by my clients was put to me 

yesterday afternoon, Collins and McDonald, have been in 

correspondence with the Council officers in relation to the specificity 

of where the rock fall which causes the rock fall, there is only one or 

two adjacent to properties is, and they have requested, I asked the 5 

Council to supply maps showing where the rock fall is so they can send 

their geotechs up to have a look at that.  There is a rather large Council 

reserve adjacent to their properties at 28 Zephyr Terrace, 105 ( ph 4.41) 

Dyers Pass Road, and they believe that their geotech have been 

wandering around for quite a while and possibly not looking at the 10 

correct issues on the ground, so to speak. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, are you asking for something? 

 

  [11.50 am] 15 

 

MR SMYTH:   Well, I am asking, (a) if the Council could volunteer that they 

would supply detailed maps, and (b) if the Council decide not to - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Mr Winchester you have heard that.  I mean the Council can 20 

advise Mr Smyth’s clients what rockfall they are concerned about so 

that these Geotech people can look at it? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly, sir, it should be a matter of simply making a 

request in writing to us, email is fine, and we will pass it on. 25 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Have you made such a request? 

 

MR SMYTH:   My clients have made such a request, sir, and they have not had 

a - - - 30 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Maybe just the answer rather than another request, Mr 

Winchester. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly, sir.  It is obviously before the Council and I 35 

do not know the detail of it but - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well you can discuss it with Mr Winchester. 

 

MR SMYTH:   Thank you, sir. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   If there is a need for an application. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   If you do not get anywhere you can always file a 

memorandum seeking a direction. 45 

 



 Page 44 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 16.12.14 

MR SMYTH:   Thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are there any other matters before we close this 

prehearing meeting?  Thank you very much for your attendance and we 

will see you in the New Year. 5 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 11.51 AM ACCORDINGLY 


